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BELMAR BOARD OF EDUCATION

1101 MAIN STREET, BELMAR, NEW JERSEY 07719

J D-\\ ID R NM L\DkN LORLI IA DIII

/
SUPERINTENDENT BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

7 PRINCIPAL BOARD SECRETARY

732-681-2388 732681 -8888

November 10, 2011

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education

Borough of Belmar School District

County of Monmouth
Belmar, New Jersey 07719

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report for the Belmar Borough School

District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for

both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including

all disclosures, rest with the management of the Belmar Board of Education. To the best

of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material

respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and

results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the district. All

disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the district’s

financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:

introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this

transmittal letter, the districts organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The

financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and schedules, and the

auditor’s report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and

demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The district is

required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single

Audit Act of 1984, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,

“Audits of State and Local Governments” and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04

0MB, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid

Payments”. Information related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the

internal control and structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and

findings and recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS’ SERVICES - Borough of Belmar School District

is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by GASB as established by

NCGA Statement No3. All funds and account groups for the district are included in this

report. The Belmar Board of Education and the Belmar Elementary School constitute the

distrjct’s reporting entity,



The district provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels
Pre-K through eight. Students in grades nine through twelve are assigned by board
policy to Manasquan, Asbury Park, Red Bank Regional, Marine Academy of Science and
Technology, High Tech High School, Allied Health and Science Academy, Class
Academy, Communications High School and the Academy High School Charter School.
The district provides a comprehensive special education program for all preschool
through eighth grade students. The district also provides for the educational needs of all
resident students of Lake Como in grades Pre-K through eight and in the area of special
education. The district completed the 2010/11 fiscal year with an average enrollment of
560, which is about the same as the previous year’s average enrollment. The following
details the changes in student enrollment of the district over the last ten years:

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
2010/2011 560 0.2
2009/2010 559 4.8
2008/2009 533 1.9
2007/2008 523 (2.0)
2006/2007 534 (1.7)
2005/2006 543 (3.4)
2004/2005 562 1.0
2003/2004 556 (0.7)
2002/2003 562 (2.9)
2001/2002 579 (1.5)
2000/2001 588 (4.0)

2) ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK: Belmar is a seashore community
that has been undergoing a transformation on the oceanfront. Longstanding business
properties have been sold and are currently being redeveloped as single family homes.
Many of these homes are valued at over two million dollars. This transition will further
limit the availability of housing for low income families as the other properties in Belmar
continue to increase in value exceeding what low income families can afford. Belmar has
a shopping area made up of independent stores and restaurants, The town is in the
process of starting a redevelopment of the downtown area and redeveloping the seaport
area. Some older structures are being replaced with mixed business/residential use
buildings. With the new homes being built on the oceanfront and the rise of real estate
prices in the town, the tax base for the conitnunity has increased. There are no major
industries located in Belmar, therefore, the majority of the residents work outside the
community. The largest employers are the Board of Education and Municipal
government.

3) MAJOR INITIATIVES: During the 2011/2012 school year we are implementing a
school wide independent reading program called 100 Book Challenge, which is a
response to intervention, researchbased instructional program that services all students.
Every readi.ngllanguage arts teacher is involved in a fifteenday, yearlong professional
development training to better understand and impiem.ent the reade?s workshop format of
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this program. Each classroom is provided with a leveled library of high-interest literature
on a spectrum of reading levels. The goal of this program is to promote and encourage
students to become avid readers, to build reading stamina, and to give teachers the
instructional time and resources to meet regularly with students both individually and in
small groups to work on targeted literacy skills.

During the 2010/2011 school year, using the ARRA funding for IDEA and Title I
we purchased educational technology for the Basic Skills and Special Education
programs. In addition, Polyvision and Mimio interactive systems have been purchased
and implemented throughout the school.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the district is
responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the district are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonably, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the district also is
responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal
control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the district management.

As part of the district’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine
the adequacy of internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and
state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine the district has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the district
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the
general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project length budgets
are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital project’s fund.
The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial
section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis, Open encumbrances at a year end are canceled or
included as reappropriation of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2011.
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6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The district’s accounting records
reflect generally accepted accounting principles, are promulgated by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the district is organized
on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained
in “Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 1.

7) FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR END: As demonstrated by the
various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the
district continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The
following schedule presents a summary of the general fund, special revenue fund and
debt service fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, and the amount and
percentage.

Increase!
Percent of (Decrease) from

Amount Prior Year Total 2010
S 9,832,638 $ 9,507,505 78% $ 325,133
$ 2,043,649 $ 1,857,450 16% $ 186,199
$ 705,068 $ 856,020 6% $ (150,952)
$ 12,581,355 $ 12,220,975.00 100% $ 360,380.00

The following schedule presents a summary of current expenses and capital projects for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, and the percentage of an increase and decreases in
relation to prior year amounts.

Increase!
Percent (Decrease) from

Expenditures Amount of Total 2010
Current Expense

Instruction $ 3,423,195.00 27% $ (234,146.00)
Undistributed Exp 7,255,880.00 58% 272,024.00
Special Schools 4,703.00 0% (360.00)

Capital Outlay 148,890.00 1% 131,653.00
Special Revenue 1,330,105.00 11% 69,661.00
Debt Service

Principal 240,966,00 2% 12,395.00
Interest 158,182.00 1% (9,526.00)

Total $ 12,561,921.00 100% $ 241,701.00

8) DEBT ADMINISTRATiON: As of June 30, 2011, the district’s outstanding debt was
$3,240,232 The debt is comprised of four funding sources. The original funding came
from the New Jersey Economic Development Authority as a loan financed through the
Low Interest Loan Facilities Program at an interest rate to the district in two categories,
The first loan of $900,000 was financed through the Small Project Loan at an interest rate
of 5.288% and the second loan of $900,000 was 1.5%. The Small Project Loan was
refinanced in 2005 resulting in a savings of $37,244. The proceeds were used to provide
funds for the 17,000 square foot addition to the Belmar Elementary School and other
renovations to the existii.g building.



During the 2010/2011 School Year there was not any additional debt issued. In July,

2003 the Board of Education retired the present value of an unfunded liability to the

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity fund for an early retirement incentive by issuing

refunding bonds in the amount of $540,000. The refinancing of this debt saved the

district $239,348 in interest expense. Also, bonds in the amount of $3,370,000 were

issued in August, 2003 to fund the local share of the capital project that was passed by

referendum in March, 2003 and partially funded by the State of New Jersey, Economic

Development Authority. The net interest rate of the bonds is 4.35% payable over 20

years. The proceeds of the bonds along with the grant from the State of New Jersey was

used to complete $5,600,000 in renovations to the Belmar Elementary School.

9) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the district is guided in large part

by state statute as detailed in “Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 2. The district

has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public

depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Government Unit Deposit

Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Government Units

from loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law

requires government units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in

New Jersey, where the funds are secure in accordance with the Act.

10) RISK MANAGEMENT: The board carries various forms of insurance, including

but not limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision,

hazard and theft insurance on property and contents and fidelity bonds.

11) OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit-State statutes require an annual audit

by independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The

accounting firm of Robert A. Hulsart & Company, CPAs and Registered Municipal

Accountants conducted the annual audit. In addition to meeting the requirements set

forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single

Audit Act of 1984 and the related 0MB Circular A-133 and State Treasury Circular

Letter 04-04 0MB. The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements and

combining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial

section of this report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are

included in the single audit report of this report.

12) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the

members of the l3elmar Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal

accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contribute

their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.

I

Loretta Hill

SuperintendentiPrincipal Board Secretary/School
Business Administrator
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CERTiFIED PLBLJC ACCOUNT4NTc

ARMOUR S. HULSART, CPA., R,M,A,, PS.A. (19591992>
732t 280-8888 2807 Hurley Pond Road ‘SOle 100ROBERT A. HULSART, C.P,A,, RM,A., RSA.

P.O. Oox 1409ROBERT A. HULSART, JR,C.RA., RS.A.
e-mail: Wal. New Jersey 07719-1409

a,rnonr”uu’, corn ‘32) 681 499°RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR,, CPA,, PSA,

II)EPEN1)ENT AIi)ITOR’S REPORT

I lonorahie President and Members
of the Board 01 Education

Beimar School District
County of Monmouth
Beimar. \ewiersev

\Ve have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business—type acli\ ilies and each major lund of the Board of Education of’ the Beimar School District, in
the county of Monmouth. State of’ \e Jerse as ot’ and Or the fiscal year ended J tine 30. 2011 . hich
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table olcontents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Beimar Board of Education’s management. Our
responsihilit is to express opi lions on these tmancial statements based on our audi.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generall\ accepted in the Enited
States of :\merica: tile standards applicable to fInancial audits contained in (Joicr,i,,w,it - 1u/i1ing
S’/c,,afu’L/s, issued b\ the Eomptroller General of the [nited States: and audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance, Department of Education. State of New Jersey. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about hether the financial statements are
tree of material misstatement. An audit includes c\amini le. on a test basis. evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing tile accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fmaneiai
statement presentation. \\e beiie e that our audit provides a reasonable basis tAr our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
tic fl LlPltJIi!UtIl Ic \9flkilil I \1LS bii4sw Lt\ 1iL L1 ii]

L .. L 1 I
.

- i l1
L I ill

Mo uou I i tic \c\ Jet ws ii of ou I) ) j1 tud tt L rcipccl c ci iugcs I nan dl position ml
cash flov\ s. where applic.ahle.. the.rcof for t.he year tuen r.nded in confArm it with accotmti ne principles

En accordance with Government A nAiling S tondarcls. we. have :1 so issued our report dated
29 I

I 0 1 1

11IaIIcitf renorinte nil our cSiS of its. eonnlinnee vith cvrtain pro\ Kons 1 . reputatIons.
and i’ants agreements and other matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope ot, our

1 of liter NI 91 1 c N ILl it cm t uc nd omi I L ml lie vu1 of I it L 0in inn
L

I

putt uu uudh pc riormec: n eeotoince ith joti mole’! luttmi:ju !IIG should he.
considered in assessinc the results 0 our and it..
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The Management Discussion and Anal> sis and Budgetary Comparison information on pages IIthrough 17 are not a required part of the basic financial statemenh but are supplementar> informationrequired b> the accounting principles generall> accepted in the United States of America. We hateapplied certain limited procedures, which consisted principail> of inquires of management regarding themethods ofmeasurement and presentation of the required supplementai information. iloiseier. we didnot audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted tbr the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements thatcoIlecti ci> comprise the Belmar Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The accompan> ingintroductor> section and other supplementar> informat ion such as the combining and indis idual non-major fund financial statements. long-term debt schedules. and statistical information are presented forpurposes ofadditional analysis and arc not a required part of the basic financial statements. Thecombining and indi idual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules ha e been subjected tothe auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, arefairl> stated, in all material respects. in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. Theintroductory section and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing proceduresapplied in the audit of the basic financial statements and. accordingl>. we express no opinion on them.
The accompanying schedules ofexpenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance arepresented for purposes ofadditional anal>sis as required by U.S. Office of Management and BudgetCircular A-l33. Audits of States. Local Goiernments. and Non-Profit Organizations: and New JerseyOMB’s Circular 04-04. Single Audit Polic> for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aidrespectively, and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. Such inlbrmation has beensubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in ouropinion, is fuirl> stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as awhole.

Respectfully submitted.

ROBERT A. HULSART AND COMPANY

Robert A. I lulart
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322
Robert A. Ilulsart and (ompain

Noemb,.r 10 2011
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BELMAR PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOROUGH OF BELMAR

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

The discussion and analysis of Relmar Public School District’s financial performance provides an
oerall review of the School District’s financial acti\ ities for the fiscal ear ended June 30. 011 . The
intent of this discussion and anal sis is to look at the School District’s financial performance as a hole;
it should be read in conjunction with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report’s (CA FR) Letter of
Transmittal which is found in the Introductory Section. and the School Board’s financial statements found
in the Financial Section and the notes thereto.

The MD & A is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 “Basic Financial Statement -

and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
— for State and Local Governments” issued in June 1999.

The new reporting model contains necessary comparative information of the previous year.

Financial Highlights

Key Financial highlights for the 2010-2011 fiscal “ ear are as follows:

• General revenues accounted for $1 1,258.729 in revenue or 88% percent of all revenues. Program
specific recnues in the form of charges for ser ices, operating grants and contributions, and capital
grants and contributions accounted for Sl.569.794 or 12% percent to total revenues ofS 12,828,553.

• Total assets of governmental activities decreased by $859,419 as cash and cash equivalents decreased
by S324.88 1. receivables increased b’ S289.959 and capital assets decreased h S824.497.

• The School District had $12,733,304 in expenses: only $1,569,794 of these expenses were offset by
program specific charges lbr services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily property
taxes, tuition and state aid) of SI 1.258.729 plus designated surplus and withdrawals from tuition
reserve and capital reserve of $368.21 I were adequate to provide br these programs.

• The General Fund had $10,859,581 in revenues and 510.832.668 in expenditures. The General
Fund’s balance increased $26.9 IS over 2010. This increase as anlicipated b the Board of
Ed ucati on.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

Ibis annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.
1 hesc statements are organized so the reader can understand Belmar Public School District as a financial
whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at
specific financial activities.

The \j I 5ei uOct c1eiFc,H vi IviivliiuS proviuc ntornianon about tile lCti5lileS 01
tnc hok scnool fiNn lu puscntlng oath in 1gglgatv viss 1 thc School Dislriu s hnanccs and a
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longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For
governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-tenn as well as what
remains for future spending. In the case of Belmar Public School District, the General Fund is the most
significant fund, with the Special Re enue Fund and Capital Project’s Fund also ha ing significance.

The School Board’s auditor has provided assurance in his Independent Auditor’s Report, located
immediateI preceding this \lanagement’s Discussion and Anal sis. that the Basic Financial Statements
arc fairly stated .A user of this report should read the Independent Auditor’s Report carefully 10 ascertain
the level of assurance being provided for each of the other parts of the Financial Section.

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used b the School District to pro ide
programs and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and
asks the question, “How did we do financially during the 2010-2011 fiscal year?” The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. This
change in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the
financial positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be
the result of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the School
District’s property tax base. current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition,
required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into
two distinct kinds of activities:

• Governmental activilies — All of the School District’s programs and services are reported here
including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant
facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

• Business-Tx pe Activities This ser ice is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover
all the expense of the goods or services pro’ ided. The Food Service Enterprise Fund is reported as a
business activity.

Reporting the School District’s 1ost Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District’s major (all) funds begins with exhibit B I Fund financial
reports pro\ ide detailed information about the School [)islricl’s major funds. The School District uses
many funds to account fur a multitude of financial transactions. F-lowe er. these fund financial statements
fbcus on the School District’s most significant funds. The School District’s major go ernmental fnnds

1 ( .. I i ‘J S a I I C tp I I I t).f s ...
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Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in Governmental Funds, which lbcus on how moneyflows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future‘ears. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, whichmeasures cash and all other financial assets that can readily he converted to cash. The GovernmentalFund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School Districfs general governmentoperations and the basic services it provides. Governmental Fund information helps you determinewhether there are more or fewer financial resources that can he spent in the near future to financeeducational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in theStatement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and Governmental Funds is reconciled in thefinancial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities: therefore, thesestatements are essentially the same.

The School District as a Whole

Table I provides a summary of the School District’s net assets for fiscal year 2010 and 2011.

Table I
Net Assets

Assets
Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets. Met

Total Assets

Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

2010 2011
$ 1,639,103 $ 2,087,202

6,598,183 5.785,437
$ 8,237,286 $ 7,872,639

$ 3,505.569 $ 3,366.038
360.321 317,789

$ 3,865,890 $ 3,683,827

$ 2,851.648 $ 2.652,213
1,418,992 1,395,164

(85,244) 141 .345
$ 4,185,396 $ 4,188,722

Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2010 and 2011.

Table 2
Changes in Net ,Assets



Revenues
Program Rev en ties
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues
Property Taxes

Grants and Entitlements
Tuition

Other

____________________________________________

Total Reven Lies

Pro2ram Expenses
Instruction
Support Services

Pupils and Instructional Staff
General Administration. School

Administration. Business Services. Unalloc.

Benefits

Operations and Maintenance of Facilities

Pupil Transportation

Special Schools’Charter School
Interest on Debt

Food Service

Total Expenses

_____________________________________________

lncrease’(Decrease) in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the need to routinely seek voter
appro al for the School District operations. Property taxes made up 69°o percent of revenues and tuition
from other school districts made up 1 80o of re enues for governmental activities for the Belmar Public
School District for fiscal year 2011. The District’s total revenues were $12,828.1 04 for the fiscal year
ended June 30. 2011 Federal and state grants. as well as miscellaneous revenue accounted for 13° a.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s husiness-t pe activities food service program were comprised of’
charees for services and idei’ai and state reimbursements.

• Food service expenditures exceeded revenues by $3,478 and for the fourth year in a row, the Board
did not subsidize the food services operation. The food service program shows a decrease of 53.47$
change in net assets due to the purchase of’ major equipment and repairs. ‘I he day to da operations
of the food sers ice pmram was profitable.

2010 2011

$ 86,131 $ 96,093
1,450,502 1,473,201

7,521,205 7,605,168
1,453,351 1,426,091
1,984,333 2.161,851

64,049 65,700
12,559,571 12,828,104S $

5 4,528,984 $ 4,356,829

3,387,263 3,940,702

3,139,359 2,927,120
727,404 668,888
435,044 430,071

5.063 4,703
164,020 154,264
235,735 250,727

5 12,622,872 $ 12,733,304

$ (63,301) $ 94,800



is.

• Charges for services represent S96.093 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by patrons for dailytbod services.

• Federal and stale reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches anddonated commodities was $1 51.075.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program sen ices and the charges for sen ices andgrants offsetting those sen ices.

instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and theinteraction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the contentand process of teaching to students. including curriculum and staff dcv elopment.

General administration, school administration and business include expenses associated withadministrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds, buildingsand equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff des elopment includes expenses related to planning. research, developmentand evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes actisities involved with the conveyance of students to and fromschool, as well as to and from school activities, as provided b state law.

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided by the SchoolDistrict which are designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events. publicevents, or a combination of these for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest andother related charges to debt of the School District.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortization.

The School District’s Funds

The School District uses funds to control and manage rnone\ for particular purposes. The Fund’sbasic tinancial statements allow the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship o\ er and accountabilityfor resources received from the Borough of E3elrnars taspaver’s and other entities, including the State ofNew Jersey and the Federal Government. iliese statements also allow the reader to obtain more insightinto the financial workings of the School Board, and assess further the School Board’s overall financialhealth.

the School Board completed the fiscal year ended .lune 0. .V1 I - it reported a combined netasset balance of S-LI 8&722. The Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue Expenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances of Governmental F nods to the Statement of Activities presents the reader with a detailedX )[aflal 00 11 tue Oil Li nc ‘Lt\ d h ing in lund nil sns mu h lnFcs in net dsscts
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The School Board’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting
for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year. the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to take into
consideration unexpected changes in revenue and expenditures.

A schedule showing the School Board’s original and final budget compared with actual operating
results is provided in the section of the CAFR, entitled Budgetary Comparison Schedules. The School
Board generally did better than had been budgeted in its General Fund since it practices conservative
budgetary practices in which revenues are forecasted very conservatively and expenditures are budgeted
with worst-case scenarios in mind.

The General Fund finished the fiscal year with approximately $249,258 less in expenditures than
budgeted. The General Fund generated $24,302 more in Revenues than budgeted. The additional
revenue over expenditures will be carried forward to the following year beginning fund balance. In June,
2011 the Board approved $375,000 increase in reserves for capital projects, maintenance, and tuition for
the upcoming years. The balance of unreserved surplus at July 1,2011 is $226,645.

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2011, the School Board had approximately $5,785,437 invested in a broad range of
capital assets, including land, buildings. furniture, vehicles, computers. instructional equipment and other
equipment. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation to date. Table II below shows the net book
value of capital assets at the end of the 2010 and 2011 fiscal year.

Table H

2010 2011
Capital Assets
Governmental Activities

$ 481,300 $ 481,300Land
Construction in Progress
Buildings & Machinery and
Equipment

Total Governmental Activities

Business Type Activities
Machinery & Equipment

Total Capital Assets

Debt Administration

6,590,735 6,247,538
$ 7,072,035 $ 6,728,838

$ 7,448.00 $ 19,19900

$ 7079,483 $ 6,748,037

At June 30. 2011. the School District had $3,366,038 as outstanding debt. Of this amount
S12 806 is for compLnsated ahsLnces S22 232 is toi loans pas able and thL balance $3 OlS 000 is for
bonds for school construction. On March 11,2003 the voters of the Borough of Belmar approved the
renovation to the Elementary school in the amount of 85.616,977. The state of New Jersey is funding
40°o or 82 236 791 rd Bonds vveft IssuLd tot the rem9imng $3 i70 000
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The Belmar Public School District is in very good financial condition presentl. The l3orough of
Belmar is primarily a residential communit\, with few commercial ratables, The majority of revenues
needed to operate the District is derived from homeowners through propert tax assessments and
collections, which is voted by the residents annually.

For the 2010-201 1 school year. the School Board was able to sustain its general fund budget
through the local tax levy, state education aid, federal aid, tuition and local revenue sources.
Approximately 13% of the School Board’s general fund revenue is from State Aid. 68% of total revenue
is from the local tax lcv. 18° o is from tuition from other LEA’s and less than I 0o is ti’om miscellaneous
revenue, which among other things includes interest on deposits.

The district has net assets of 54.188,722 for all governmental activities representing the
accumulated results of all past years’ operations. The unrestricted portion of the net assets is S 141.345.
This means that ifthe School Board had to pay offal! hills today, including all of the School Board’s
noncurrent liabilities such as compensated absences, the School Board would have a surplus of$14l.345.
The district also has $496,899 in capital reserve monies and $450,000 in Tuition Reserve. $201 .005 in
Emergency Reser e. and SI 50.450 in Maintenance Reserve, as well as the fair market value of the capital
assets.

While State aid has been essentially frozen over the last few years, over the past two years the
amount of state aid to the District has decreased significantk. in 2008 2009 the District received
$1,383,388 in State Aid. This amount decreased to $1,018,000 in 2009’20l0 and 5966.613 in 20102011.
The district supplemented the loss of state aid with surplus funds and cost savings through salary
negotiations and a minimal reduction in staff The student population has remained relatively constant
over the past for \ears. In the future. the tax levy will he the area that will need to absorb any increase in
budget obligations and that is limited to a 2% cap.

The School Board anticipates that enrollment for the 2011-2012 school year will remain stable.
The School Board cannot accurately forecast future enrollment, hut man school Districts in Monmouth
County faced dereased enrollments over the past few years while the enrollment in Belmar has
increased.

In conclusion, the Belmar Public School District has committed itself to financial excellence for
many years. In addition, the School District’s system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal
financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to
meet the challenge of the future.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to pro ide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District’s accountability for the
mone it receiv es. If von ha e questions about this report or need additional intbrmation contact: Ms.
Loretta Hill. School Business Administrator Board Secretar at Belmar Board of Education. 1 101 Main
St. Belmar, N.J 07719,
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Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Inventory
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Accounts Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For:
Other Purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Exhibit A-I

Business-Type
Activities Total

35,326
489,924

1,327

1,079,324
481,300

19,199 5,785,437
65,163 7,872,638

50,742
16,940 18,651

248,496

________

3,366,038
16,940 3.683,927

35,326
9,311
1,327

Governmental
Activities

S -

480,613

l ,079,324
481,300

5,766,238
7,807,475

50,742
1,711

248,496
3,366,038
3,666,987

2,633,004

1,362,716
144,768

8 4,140,488

19,199 2,652,203

1,362,716
29,024 1 73,792

48.223 4,188,711

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



B
E

L
M

A
R

S
C

H
O

O
L

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
xh

ib
it

A
-2

S
he

et
I

o
f

2
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S

F
O

R
T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
E

D
JU

N
E

30
,

20
11

N
et

(E
xp

en
se

)
R

ev
en

ue
an

d

G
ov

e.
rn

m
en

ta
l

,\
c

hv
it

ie
s:

in
st

ru
ct

io
n:

R
eg

ul
ar

S
pe

ci
al

E
du

ca
tio

n.
o

th
er

S
pe

ci
al

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

O
t.h

e.
r

in
st

ru
S

up
po

rt
S

er
vi

ce
s:

T
ui

ti
on

S
tu

de
nt

&
In

hi
ru

ct
io

n
R

el
at

ed
S

er
vi

ce
s

(e
n
eu

h
\T

ni
ni

st
ra

ti
ve

S
er

Sc
ho

ol
-\

Jm
ai

tr
at

i\
C

$
2,

59
7,

88
6

2,
16

1,
85

1
1,

20
6,

86
0

10
4,

20
0

18
7,

54
5

2,
92

3,
35

9
1,

27
7.

68
1

23
2.

80
9

(4
36

,0
35

)
11

5,
76

6
(1

04
,2

00
)

(1
87

,5
45

)

(2
,9

23
,3

59
)

(1
,2

77
.6

81
)

(2
32

.8
09

)

Pl
an

t
O

pe
ra

to
nN

an
d

\l
ai

nt
en

an
ce

P
u
p

1
i..

.n
ai

hi
ca

te
j

I
n

pl
ov

ee
B

en
eh

ts
t

na
lI

at
eJ

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
In

te
re

st
on

o
n

e
Ie

rm
[)

eh
t

S.
pe

Li
ai

F
’

T
ot

al
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s

39
54

42
66

8.
88

8
43

0.
07

1
1.

94
2.

43
9

35
6.

43
0

15
4.

26
4

4
.
7
0
3

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

12
,4

82
,5

77
2.

16
1,

85
1

(3
95

.4
42

)

(6
68

.8
88

)
(4

30
.0

71
)

(1
.9

42
.4

39
)

(3
56

.4
30

)
(1

54
.2

64
)

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

(4
,7

03
)

1.
32

2.
62

6
(8

,9
98

,1
00

)

(3
95

.4
42

)
(6

68
.8

88
)

(4
30

.0
71

1.
94

2.
33

9)
(3

56
.4

30
)

(1
53

.2
64

)
(4

.7
03

)
(8

.9
98

.1
00

)

12
,7

33
,3

04

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

T
he

ac
co

m
pa

n\
in

g
N

ot
es

to
F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

ar
e

an
in

te
gr

al
pa

rt
o
f

th
is

st
at

em
en

t.

E
xp

en
se

s

P
ro

g
ra

m
R

ev
en

ue
s

O
p

er
at

in
g

C
h
ar

g
es

fo
r

G
ra

n
ts

an
d

S
er

vi
ce

s
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
s

C
ha

ng
es

in
N

et
A

ss
et

s

G
o
v
er

n
m

en
ta

l
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s

B
u
si

n
es

s-
T

y
p
e

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

1,
32

2,
62

6

T
ot

al

(4
36

,0
35

)
11

5,
76

6
(1

04
,2

00
)

(1
87

,5
45

)

(2
,9

23
.3

59
)

(1
.2

77
.6

81
)

(2
32

.8
09

)

13
us

.i.
n.

es
sT

yp
e

.A
ct

iv
iti

es
:

Fo
od

S
er

vi
ce

25
0,

72
7

96
,0

93
15

1,
07

5
(3

,5
59

)
(3

,5
59

)
T

ot
al

B
us

in
es

sT
yp

e
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
25

0,
72

7
96

,0
93

15
1,

07
5

(3
,5

59
)

(3
,5

59
)

lo
ta

l
P

um
sr

r
G

o
ci

n
m

en
t

2
25

7
94

4
1

47
3

70
1

(8
99

8
10

0)
(3

55
9)

(9
00

1
6
9
)

‘C



B
E

L
M

A
R

S
C

H
O

O
L

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
xh

ib
it

A
-2

S
he

et
2

o
f

2
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

O
F

A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S

F
O

R
T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
E

I)
JU

N
E

30
,2

01
1

N
et

(E
xp

en
se

)
R

ev
en

ue
an

d
C

ha
ng

es
in

N
et

A
ss

et
s

G
en

er
al

R
ev

en
ue

s:
T

ax
es

:
P

ro
pe

rt
y

T
ax

es
.

L
ev

ie
d

tb
r

G
en

er
al

P
u

rp
o

se
.

N
et

T
ax

es
L

es
ie

d
lr

D
eb

t
S

er
vi

ce
F

ed
er

al
an

d
St

at
e

A
id

N
ot

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

In
ve

st
m

en
t

E
ar

ni
ng

s
an

d
M

is
ce

ll
an

eo
us

In
co

m
e

T
ot

al
G

en
er

al
R

ev
en

ue
s,

S
pe

ci
al

It
em

s,
E

xt
ra

or
di

na
ry

It
em

s
an

d
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

C
ha

m
re

in
N

et
A

ss
et

s
A

dj
us

tm
en

t
fa

r
F

ix
ed

A
ss

et
s

an
d

D
eb

t
N

et
A

ss
et

s
B

eg
in

ni
ng

G
o
v
er

n
m

en
ta

l
A

ct
iv

it
ie

s

7,
20

6,
02

0
39

9,
14

8
1,

42
6,

09
1

65
,6

19

9,
09

6,
87

8
98

,7
78

(1
04

,5
40

)
4,

14
6,

25
0

B
us

in
es

s-
T

yp
e

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

81 81
(3

,4
78

)
12

,5
55

39
,1

46

T
ot

al

7,
20

6,
02

0
39

9.
14

8
1,

42
6,

09
1

65
,7

00

9,
09

6,
95

9
95

,3
00

(9
1,

98
5)

4,
18

5,
39

6

N
et

A
ss

et
s

E
nd

in
g

$
4,

14
0,

48
8

48
,2

23
4,

18
8,

71
1

T
he

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g
N

ot
es

to
F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

ar
e

an
in

te
gr

al
pa

rt
o

f
th

is
st

at
em

en
t.



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - B



BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit B-I 21.

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30. 2011

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental

Fund Fund Funds
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents S -

Interfund Receis able 319.204 310.204
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,079,324 1,070.324
Receivables, Net 127,300 353,313 480,613

Total Assets 5 1,525,828 353,313 1,879,141

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ - 1,711 1,71!
Interfund Payable 319.204 319,204
Deferred Revenue 50.732 50,742

Total Liabilities 37 1.657 371,657

Fund Balance:
Restricted fur:

Designated fur Subsequent
Years Expenditures - Excess Surplus 11,358 11,358

Designated fur Subsequent
Years Expenditures - Tuition Reserve Budgeted Withdrawal 225,000 225,000

Tuition Reserve:
2010-21)11 225,000 225,000

Maintenance Reserve 150,450 150,450
Emergency Reserve 201.005 201,005
Capital Reserve Account 496,899 496,899
Assigned to:

Other Purposes 43,862 43,862
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures - BOE 9,142 9,142

Unassigned:
Special Revenue Fund (18,344) (18,344)
GeneralFurtcl 163,112

__________

163,112
Total Fund Balances 1,525,828 (18,344) 1,507,484

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,525,828 353,313

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Assets (A-I) are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not Ilnancial resources and therefure are
not reported in the funds. Fhe Cost of the
assets is SI l,37L204 and the accumulated
depreciation is $5.2 73,666. 6.247.538

long—term liabilities, including bonds pa able. are
not due and pas able in the current period and
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
funds. tsee Note 3> (3,614,534)

S 4.130.458

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BELMAR SCHOOL IMSTRICT
24.

RECONCiLIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES

AXE) CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit B-3

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds (From B—2)

Amounts Reported Er Governmental Acti ities in the Statement of
Activities (A-2) are Difftrent Because:
Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
I 1o\ ever. in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in
the period.

Depreciation Expense
Capital Outlays

(356,430)
190,890

S 19.434

(165.540)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds.
hut the repayment reduces long—term liabilities in the statement of net
assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 240.966

in the statement of activities. interest on long—term debt in the statement of
activities is accrued. regardless of when due. In the governmental fund,
interest is reported when due.

Change in Net Assets of (iovernmental Actix ities

3.918

$ 98.778

Ihe. accompanymp Notes to Financ.ial Statements are.. an integral part of this statement.



25.
BELMAR SCHOOL, DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Exhibit 8-4

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 35,326
Accounts Receivable:

State 235
Federal 8,918
Miscellanoues 158

Inventories 1,327
Total Current Assets 45,964

Noncurrent Assets:
Equipment 43,138
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (23,939)
Total Noncurrent Assets 19,199

Total Assets S 65,163

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 16,940

Total Liabilities $ 16,940

Net Assets
Investment in Capital Assets $ 19,199
Unrestricted 29,024

Total Net Assets S 48,223

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



26.
BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
Exhibit B-5

IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Operating Revenues:
Local Sources:

Daily Sales Reimbursable Programs S 95.935
Daily Sales Non-Reimbursable Programs 158

Total Operating Revenue 96,093

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Food 107,784
Salaries 83,900
Management Fee 9,000
Insurance 7,804
Cost of Supplies 11,760
Depreciation 804
Audit 1,000
Repairs 285
Miscellaneous 28,390

Total Operating Expenses 250,727

Operating (Loss)/Profit (154,634)

Non-Operating Revenues:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program 3,328

Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program 122,257
Federal Breakfast Program 15,373
Food Distribution Program 10,117

Interest Revenue 81
Total Non-Operating Revenues 151,156

Change in Net Assets (3.478)

Adjustment for Net Assets 12,555

Net Assets. July 1 39,146

Net Assets, Jun•••.e 30

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements arc an .integ.gai part of..this..s.tatement•.



27.
BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Exhibit 11-6

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Daily Sales $ 96,093
Payments to Employees (83,900)
Payments to Suppliers (148,321)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (136,128)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State Sources 3,328
Federal Sources 137.630

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 140,958

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest SI

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,911

Cash and Cash Equivalents July 1 30,415

Cash and Cash Equivalents June 30 $ 35,326

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Operating (Loss)/Profit $ (154,634)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
I)epreciation 804
Federal Commodities Consumed 10,117
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable 3.127
lncrease’(Deerease) in Accounts Payable 4.395
(lncrease)Decrease in Inventory 63

Net (‘ash Used by Operating Activities S (136,128)



28.
BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Exhibit B-7

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Net Assets:

Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims

and Other Purposes

Total Net Assets

Scholarship

Fund

$ 800

S 800

s 800

s 800

Unemployment

Compensation

Trust

89.302

89.302

89,302

89,302

Ilie accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



29.
BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Exhibit B-S

Additions

Contributions

Other
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:

Interest

Net Investments Earnincs

lotal Additions

Deductions

Unemployment Claims

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets — End of the Year

Scholarship
Fund

$

80()

$ 800

Uneniployrnent

Compensation

Trust

7,929

7,929

250

750

8.179

99,764

99,764

(91,585)

180,887

89.302

Fhe accompan\ me Notes to Financial latements are an integral part ol lhi tatemen1.
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HOARD OF EDUCATION

BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Ihe financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Belmar School
District (District) have been prepared in conformity ‘a ith generally accepted accounting
lrincilles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard—setting body l’or establishing aovernmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Belmar School District is a Type 11 district located in the County of Monmouth,
State of New Jersey. As a Type II district, the School District functions independently through a
Board of Education. The board is comprised of’ nine members elected to three—s ear terms. The
purpose of the district is to educate students in grades K-8. The E3elniar School District had an
approximate enrollment at June 30, 2011 of 55 students.

The primary criterion tr including acti ities ‘.‘ ithin the District’s reporting entity, as set
flwth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Go ernment Accounting and Financial
jçppi1ing Standards. is whether:

• The organization is legall\ separate (can sue or he sued in their o\ n name)
• The District holds the corporate po\ ers of the organization

• The District appoints a voting majorit of the organization’s board
• The District is able to impose its will on the organization
• The organization has the potential to impose a financial.’benefit’burden on the District
• There is a fiscal dependenc b the organization on the District

B. (overnmen(Widc Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities, These statements report financial information fbr the District as a whole
exciudine hdueiar\ acti ities such as student acovities. 1ndi idual hands are not displaed hut
the statements distinguish eax ernmental aeti ItICS, generally supported h\ state and lederal aid.
tuition and eouuI tax le\ ics. i’om husiness-t pc aerivitie enerall\ financed in whole or in part
with tees charged to external parties.



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses ota given lunction otiset by program

revenues directl connected with the functional program. A fimction is an assembly of similar

activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the

expenses and program reenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program reenues

include (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the I)istrict’s

ser ices and ) operating grants and contributions. These re enues are subject to externally

imposed restrictions to these program uses. Tax levies and other re\enue sources not properly

included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are pros ided for go ernmental. proprietary and fiduciary

funds. The New Jersey Department of Education (the “Department”) has elected to require New

Jerse districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option

noted in GASB No.34. paragraph 76. The Department believ es that the presentation of all funds

as major is important fur public interest and to promote consistency among district financial

reporting models.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement

Presentation

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The District’s reporting entitx applies all relevant

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government—wide

and proprieta fund financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before Nov ember

30. I 989. unless those pronouncements contlict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in

which case, GASB prevails.

The government—wide statements report using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting generall including the reclassification or elimination

f internal actis it\ (betv\ ecu or within funds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial

statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal acti\ itv is

not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are

recorded when a liabilit is incurred regardless of the timing ol related cash flows. County tax

revenues are recognized in the \car for which the are levied while grants are recognized when

grantor eligibility requirements are met. The Uneinploment 3 rust Fund recognizes employer

and empio\ cc contributions in the period in which contributions are due,

Governmental fund financial stalenients rcpori using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of aceountino. Revenues are recognized when

they are both measurable and availahle Available means collectible within the current period or

soon enough thereafter to apply current liabilities. fhe District considers rev cnues to be

as ridable if’ tlie\ arc collected within 60 da s of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are

recorded when therelated fund 1 iabil dv is incurred. e.xccpi fur ionpterm e’nsioi and

compensated ahwnees. which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

31.



32.

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation (Continued)

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual includes intergovernmental revenues, and
the count’s tax lev’ . In general. other revenues are recognized when cash is recei ed.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues
and expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating
revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for food sales and for services provided
to other go ernmental entities. Principles operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or
services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues
and expenses are classified as non—operating in the financial statements.

P. Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The
principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into funds or account groups in accordance with activities or objectives specified for
the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.
An account group, on the other hand. is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because the do
not directly affdct net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental. proprietary and liduciarv. Each category, in turn, is divided into
separate “fund types”.

Governmental Fund Types

CJLneIal Fund I hL gnci il lund is th. gLnu ii opu 91mg fund of thL District aid is
used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another hind.

pcci tlRccnuc Fund I he District Iceounts lot the procLeds of spLeifie i cx enuc
sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legall
restricted to expenditures for spec iiied purposes in the special revenue funds.

jpiti lP jjslund thc Lapita I proccts tu no is ii scd to icc ouiit tot all I in mc ta 1
resources to he used bar the acquisition or construction of major capital fucilities (other
than those financed by propne1tu\ funds.

Debt er ice Fund The debt er ice fund is used to account or the aceumu at ion of
resources for, and the payment of prineipil and interest on bonds issued to finance
malor property aequ sitton. construction and mtros ement flrograins.

Enteiprlsebrmd: To account for operations that are tinanced md operated in a mamic..r
S tmdar to prs ate hiNifleSS L-a1eiprJse. 1oeh ne intent ohihe [)isiriei. s hat the

oh prosnc uods or set ees t.c. the District. on a eotll.inuin basis he iinancrtd or
reeovere.d primari lv thronch user eharoes
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NOTE 1: Summary of Si2nificant Accountin2 Policies (Continued)

D. Fund Accounting (Continued):

Fiduciars Fund Types

Agycy FundsiPa ollandStudcntActivitiesfund): Agene funds are used toaccount tbr the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent .Agencfunds are custodial in nature and do not in olve measurement of results of operations.

Trust and Ageiigyjunds: fhe trust and agency funds are used to account for assetsheld h the District on behalf of outside parties. including other goernrnents. or onbehalf of other funds ss ithin the District.

pçp table Irust Rind: An expendable trust fund is accounted for in essentiail\ thesame manner as the go ernmental fund t pes. using the same measurement focus andbasis of accounting. Expendable trust funds account ibr assets xshcre both theprincipal and interest ma\ be spent. Expendable trust funds include UnemploymentCompensation Insurance and the follos tag scholarship funds:

Stoner Scholarship Fund

Agency Funds (P Hand Student Activities Fui): Agency funds are used toaccount for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agentAgenefunds are custodial in nature and do not invols e measurement of resu Its of operations.

F. Basis of Accountin2:

Ihe moditied accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position andoperating results of all gos ernmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agcnc funds.Under the modifled accrual basis of accounting. re critics are recogni ed ‘.s hen the\ become bothmeasurable and as ailable. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determinedand availahle” means collectible v ithin the current period or soon enough thereafter to he usedto pa liabilities ot the current period. Expenditures are recogniied in the accounting period inshich the fund liability is incurred, except ftr principal and interest on general long—term debtss hich are recorded ss hen due.

\d \ aim em (Propeit> 1 as are susceptible to acm rial as under sexs Jersey ‘stateStatute 1 municipalits is rLquired to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in theamount oted upon 01 ccr1ited, 1 ioi to the cud ol the schoi sear. I he I)i’trict rccoid thecntir appro ed tax less as res curie (aLcrlled) at tile start oithc (scai ear, since thc rLsenue isboth rneasui able and as ailahlc 1 he District is entitled to reci e mone s under the establishedpa> mcni schdulc and the unpaid amount is considered to he an “accounts receis able”.

Jiua h. t acc mt ic s ised nm e’sw Ii I iO 1’ 1 as Ii Te If Ii 01 ‘1 JilU I pLdJslC it t tid’tais rikti UI 1L\LITh 0lid nil C ‘Until Jil 11 i\ il sJ1 0,1 iOU i\ I ss UI IC cLd ii lhtni1 tIe, II e 0111 ed
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NOTE 1: Sunainars of Si2nificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. BudetsJBudetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each ear for the general.
special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and areoted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared
usine the modified accrual basis of accounting: the legal le\ ci of hudgetar control is establishedat line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) le ci of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts refirenced in\J.A.C. 6A:23-2.2(g)f All budget amendments must he approved by School Board resolution.Budget amendments during the year ended June 30. 2011 were insignificant.

The Public School Education Act of 1975. limits the annual increase ofan district’s netcurrent expense budget. The Commissioner of Education certifies the allowable amount for eachdistrict hut ma grant a higher level of increase if he determines that the sums so provided wouldbe insufficient to meet the identified goals and needs of the district or that an anticipated
enrollment increase requires additional funds.

The Comnussioner must also review every proposed local school district budget for thenext school year. lie examines eery item of appropriations for current expenses and budgetedcapital outlay to determine their adequac in relation to the identified needs and goals of thedistrict. If, in his ‘ iew. they are insufficicnt. the Commissioner must order remedial action. Ifnecessary, he is authorized to order changes in the local district budget.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended by transfers or additional appropriation offund balances by approval of a majority of the members of the Board. Amendments arepresented to the Board at their regular meetings. Each amendment must have Board approval.Such amendments are made before the ftict, are reflected in the official minutes of the Board, andare not made after fiscal year—end as dictated by law. Individual transfers were not material inrelation to the original appropriations. All uncommitted budget appropriations lapse at year—end.

C. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments lrthe expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund arc reported asreservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures orliabilities but rather commitments related to unperiormed contracts Or goods and ser’ ces

Open encumhranee in the special re enue fund Or which the District has receivedadvances are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end,

[he encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year An entrw ill he made at the beginning of the next fiscal ear to increase the appropriation reflected in thecertified budget by the outstand ine encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal :ear end
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Short-Terni Interfund Receivables/Pavables:

Short—Term interfund receivables’payables represents amounts that are owed, other thancharges for good or ser ices rendered to from a particular fund in the District and that are dueithin one year.

1. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

ln entories and prepaid expenses. which benefit future periods, other than those recordedin the enterprise fund are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using thefirst—in—first—out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fimd represent paymentsmade to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011.

J. Capital Assets and Depreciation

The District’s property, buildings and improvements, equipment, ehicles. furniture andlixtures with useful lives of five years or more are stated at historical or estimated historical costand are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary Fund capital assets arereported in its respective fund.

The District contracted with an outside service company to provide a report with acomprehensive detail of capital assets and depreciation during 2003-2004. Accumulateddepreciation fbr fiscal year 2011, fiscal year 2011 depreciation expense. total accumulateddepreciation and book values were also provided. The costs of normal maintenance and repairsthat do not add to the asset value or materially extend the useful lives are not capitalized. Capitalassets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed. the costand applicable accumulated depreciation are removed ii’om the respective accounts. Estimateduseful lies. in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20
— 50

Equipment and Vehicles 5 20
Furniture and Fixtures

C ipItal asct actix it thL car Ln&d Junc 3t) 2011 was as tollows
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

.J. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Balance Appraisal Balance
July 1.2010 Additions j Retirements June 30.2011Gox ernmental Activities:

Capital Assets that are
Not Being Depreciated:

Land $ 48L300 481.300Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated 48LiQ

Site Improvements and
Buildings 1 O.6a. 167 1 0.6i. 67Machinery and
quIpmLnt 3.4L214 L3J

Totals 10.976.671 13,233 10.989.904

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation {br:
Sites and Buildings 4,710,398 328.597 5.038.995Equipment

Total Accumulated
Depreciation 4867236 35&430 5.22666

Net Depreciable Assets 6J.435 766238

Governmental Actix ities
capitd \sscts Net $6 90 73 (43 197) 6247 38

Business— Fvpe Acti ities:
Equipment $ 30.583 I 1555 43,138Less: Accumulated
Depreciation ir:

Equipment
—. 23J35 $04

BusiuessFvpe Activities
C ij’itil \swts Nt 11 1 19 199

The fixed asset iistine is updated each ear b Ace leOn inventory on—mte. and assets aretagged. or deleted, as appropriate. ihe GASB 3$ summaries are required to determine acli\ it tohe reported in the CAFR. as the additions and remo’ als contain items for insurance purposes thaiare not eapilali ed her (IASB 34 purposes. Ihese can he identi tied on the comprehensive reportshs the veer included in the last column. if no year is in that column, than there s as no CASE 34asset. \ liner adjustments (562) to the 20 (.020 1 clet.weci alien expse was made to briuc assetlues • J tine .31), 20 1
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IOTE 1: Sunimarv of Si2nificant Accountin2 Policies (Continued)

K. Accrued Salaries and Wa2es

Certain District employees, ho pros ide services to the F)strict o er the ten-month

academic ear, have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twek e

month year. New Jersey statutes require that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained

in a separate bank account.

L. Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as

directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 6 (GASB I 6),

Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to

services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the

employer and employee is accrued as emplo.ees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance

with the District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.

The Districts polic\ permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the

full amount to subsequent \ears. Upon retirement emplo ees shall be paid by the District for the

unused sick leave in accordance with the District’s aereements x’ ith the various employee

tin ions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is

recorded in the general long—term debt account group. The current portion of the compensated

absence balance is not considered material to the applicable fund total liabilities, and therefure is

not shown separately from the long—term liah lit’ balance of compensated absences.

M. Deferred Revenue

Deterred re enue in the special revenue fund represents cash, which has been received

hut not et earned. See note 1(e) regarding the special re enue fund.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long—term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund hen due or when

resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following

year. For other long-term obligations, only that portioi epected to he financed from expendable

a\ al lahie financial resources is reported as a fund I abi I it of a eo ernmentai fund. 1 he

nm i iona port in ot uh ohia ns ‘ 1Lp m, I in hL ,LU P one tLrm OLtP ‘Kdn1 a” u

Euity

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund c.apitai contributed to the proprietary

fluids from other funds Grants, cuff lemen Is. em shared revenues \ h eh are restricted fur the

acquisition or construction et capital I,ets are a isv recorded as contributed capital Reserves
,,

a specific future use Designated fund balances repre.sent plans for future use of financ.ial

resources.



NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

P. Tuition Receivable

Tuition charees crc established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs.

The charges are subject to adjustment hen the tinal costs ha e been determined.

Q. Tuition Payable

luition charges for the fiscal ear 2010-201 1 was based on rates established by the

receiving district. These rates are subject to change ‘. hen the actual costs hax e been determined.

The District has elected to reserve $225.000.00 for future tuition adjustment liabilities. hich is

within the 10% ceiling allowed by the Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

2010-2011 School Year $ 225.000

2009-010 School Year 225.000

Balance June 30, 2011 550,000

To be Utilized in 2011-2012 225M00

Available for Future Years S 225.000

NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash. change funds, amounts in deposits, and

short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

ln estments are stated at cost or amortized cost. which approximates market. The Board

classifies certiticates of deposit. which have original maturity dates of more than three months

but less than twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public

depositories located in New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance (..orporation. or by an other agency of the

United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also

permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of

t,uhlic funds that exceed dcpositorx insurance limits as follows:

1 he market s aluc of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average

dai1 balance of collected public funds on deposit.

In add Lion to the ahos e col latcml renu rement. if the puhi ic funds deposited exceed 75°

of the capital funds of the depositors, the depositor must pros dc collateral has ing a market

va!ue at least equal to I 00% of the amount exceeding 75%.

I L( daLi il must h denos ted with tn ee ciii Rcsc sc i3an u New or t% F cde U

c Hank of liii deiUhi;. the 1edcrai Home- Loan Bank ofNcw York. o a hankme

Insulu oi Ui i mm .r i w,. I lel 1 R.sL L S 1O Ii t ii It 5

$2 5,000,000.
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NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the 1. nited States or obligations

guaranteed h\ the United States.

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home

Loan Bank. Federal National Mortgage Agency or any United

States Bank of Cooperaties which have a maturity date not greater

than i dye months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the school district.

All hank deposits and inestments as olthe balance sheet date are classified as to credit

risk by the follow ing two categories described below:

As of June 30. 2011. the District’s deposits and investments are summarized as follo\\ 5:

FDIC $ 100.800

GUPDA 1.746.882

$l,847682

As ofJune 30, 2011. cash and cash equivalents and inestments of the District consisted

of the fol low ing:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Interest Bearing Checking Accounts $1 .230.050

The carrying amount ot the Boards cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30.

2u was s .230.050 and the hank balance was SI .8-47.682 Of the bank balance SlOO.$00 was

ew ered h federal deposuorv insurance and .‘46.882 was cox ered h\ a collateral pool

maintained by the banks as required h\ New ,1erse statutes,

Custodial Credit Risk — 1)eposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a hank fhilure, the government’s

de’.. osits may not he. returned to it. The District does not have a. formal policy for c.ustodial credit



NOTE 3: General Lon-Term flebt

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the general long-term debt account group:

A mo tints
Due

Balance Balance Within Long-Term
July 1, 2010 Issued Retired June 30, 2011 One Year Portion

Compensated
Absences
Payable S 16.840 108,966 125.806 125,806

Loans Payable 439.695 (105.967) 333.728 108,496 225,232
Bonds Payable 3,290.000 (135.000) 3,155,000 140,000 3,015,000

$ 3,746,535 [0&966 (240,967) 36 14,534 248,496 3,366,038

A. Loans Payable

The Board has two loan program, a low-interest facilities program loan issued on August
18, 1993, and a small project program loan, also issued on August 18, 1993. The interest rates
are I .500% and 5.288%, respectively, and both loans are payable through July 1 3. 201 3. These
loans were issued by the New Jersey Economic Development Authority.

Principal interest Total
Year Ending June 30.

2011-2012 $ 108,486 10,294 118,780
2012-2013 111,197 6,279 117,476
2013-2014 114.045 2,118 116,163

$333,728 18,691 352,419

B. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2011 . the Board had no authorized but not issued bonds.



NOTE 3: General Lon2-Ternl Debt (Continued)

C. Bonds Payable

Principal Interest Total

Year Endint.t .1 une 30.
2012 S 140.000 137.921 277.921

2013 150.000 131.491 281.491

2014 155,000 124.723 279,723

2015 285.000 115,009 400,009

2016 295,000 102.181 397.181

2016-2020 1.495.000 311.091 1.806.091

202 1-2023 635.000 29.677 664.677

$ 3.155M0 952.093 4.107,093

Bonds issued 7/8/03 thr $540,000 at interest From 5.00% to 5.50% maturing 10/1/20 17

with a balance of $S00.000 at June 30, 2011.

Bonds issued 8/1/03 for $3.3 70.000 at interest from 4.15% to 4.625% maturint 8/12022

with a balance of 52.855.000 at June 30. 2011.

NOTE 4: Pension Plans

Description of Plans All required employees of the District are covered by either the

Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have

been established by slate statute and are administered h the Ne Jersey Division of Pension and

Benefits (Division). According to the State of Ne Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations

of both Systems will he assumed by the Stale of New .Jersev should the Systems terminate. The

Division issues a publicly a ailable financial report that includes the financial statements and

required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained b writing to the Division

of Pensions and Benefits. P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey. 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) * The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity

Fund was established as ofJanuarv I. 1955. under the provisions ol N..J.S.A. 1 8A:66 to provide

retirement benefits. death. disahilit and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The

Teachers’ Pension and Annuit Eund is considered a cost—sharing multiple—emploer plan with a

special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the

State of New Jerse on behalf of the District and the system’s other related nomcontrihuting

employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the

professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of

Education who ha e titles that are unclassilied. professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement Sisiem (PERS) — The Public Employee’s Retirement

S’stem ( PERS) was established as of January 1. 1955 under the provisions oF N .J.S A. 43:1 5A to

provtdc retirement, death, disability and medical henelits to certain qualified members The

Public E./mployees’ Retirement Syste.m is a costsharing multipimempioyer plan. Membership is

mandat n lot suhseantaalk all toll time cmptoec of th St ic Ness Jem or ans um

municipality, school district, or public acency. provided the employee is not required to be a

ii I t ‘ O t aii th I a ii m d
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit prov isions for PERS are set

h .J.S.A. 43:15A and -t3.3B. and \.J.S.A. l8A:6C for IP\F. .\Il benefits vest after eight to

ten years of sen ice, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years ofserv ice. Retirement

benefits for age and sen ice are available at age 60 and are generall determined to be 1 55 of the

final average salary for each year of service credit, as defined. Final average salary equals the

average salary for the final three ears of sen ice prior to retirement (or highest three ears’

compensation if other that the final three years>. Members may seek early retirement after

achiev ing 25 years of serv ice credit or the’ may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to

ten years of service in vv hich case benefits vvould begin the first day of the month after the

member attains normal retirement age. The ‘I PAF and PERS prov ides for specified medical

benefits for members vvho retire after achieving 25 years of qualified sen ice. as defined, or

under the disability prov isions of the System.

Members are alvvavs fully vested for their ovvn contributions and. after three years ot

sen ice credit. become vested for 2°o of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case

of death before retirement. members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the

members’ accounts.

Sini1lcant Legislation - I)uring the year ended June 30. 1997. legislation vvas enacted

(Chapter 114, P1. 1 997) authorizing the Nevv Jersey Economic Dcv elopment Authority to issue

bonds. notes or other obligations for the purpose of financing, in full or in part. the State of Nevv

Jersey’s portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the State ofNevv Jersey retirement

systems. Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 30. 1997 (Chapter II 5. P.L.

1997> changed the asset valuation method from market related value to full-market value. [his

legislation also contained a provision to reduce the emploee contribution rate by of I o to

4.50o for calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to alloys for a reduction in the employee’s rate after

calendar year 1999, providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also

provided that the District’s normal contributions to the Fund may he reduced based on the

rev aluation of assets. Due to recognition of the bond proceeds and the change in asset valuation

method as a result ofenactrnent of Chapters 114 and 115, all unfunded accrued liabilities vvere

eliminated, except for the unfunded liability fir local early retirement incentive benefits.

accordingly, the pension costs for TPAF and PERS vsere reduced.

Contribution Requirements — Fhe contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:l5A.

Chapter 62. P.L. of 1994. Chapter 115. P.1.. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires

contributions by active members and contributing emploers. Plan member and employer

contributions may he amended h State of Ness Jersey legislation, fP \F and PFRS provide fiM

emplo cc contributions of 5 °
i of emplo ee’’ annual compensation, as defined. Lmplo cr5 are

required to eontri hute at an actuarial Iv determined iate in both I P U and P1 RS [he actuarial lv

determined contribution includes tundinu br both cotnlliv ing adjustments. noncontrlbuk1r\

death benefits. and post—retirement meLlkiil premiums. I nder current statute the DistriLt is a

noiiLo1i1rihuLIng emph v e of th I P \ I

Three-Year Trend information for PERS

nnual Percenta2e \et

Pension ol P( Pension

hin4j tj (ontnbutcd ljition

I 4i I 64 I 6’ tft 6

(‘ I

6 ,U 69
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OTlZ 4: Peiisaoia Plans (Continued)

Three—Year Trend Information for [PAF (Paid On—Behalf of the I)istrict)

Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension ut APU Pension

Ftindinit (‘ost (.PC) Contributed Obligation

6i30, 11 5 272,062 I 00% 0

6’30!l () 254.190 100% ()

(j 3 0 09 I 10° a t)

I)urine the fiscal ear ended June 30. 2011. the State ofew Jerse contributed

5272.062 to the TPAF for normal and post—retirement benefits on behalf of the District, Also, in

accordance ith NJ.S.A. I 8A:66-66 the State o \ew Jerse reimbursed the District 5274.258

durin the year ended June 30. 2011 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for

I PAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. 1 his amount has been included in the

general—purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group

statements and schedules as revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24.

NOTE 5: Post-Retirement Benefits

P.1.. 1987. c. 384 and P.L. 1990. c.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity Fund

I P \F ) md the Public. I iuplo cc. Rc.tii c.mc.nt S\ stcaTl (Pt- RS) c.pc.LtI l to fund post

retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of

credited ser ice or on a disabil tv retirement. Ph. 2007. c. I 03 amended the Ia to eliminate the

fund ing ol’ post—retirement medical benefits through the TPA F and PF.RS. It created separate

funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post—retirement medical

benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30. 2010.

there ere 87,2X$ retirees eligible for post—retirement medical benefits. [he cost of these

benefits is funded through contributions h the State in accordance ‘ ith P.1.. 1994. c.62.

Funding of post—retirement medical premmn changed from a prefunding basis to a pay—as—you—

go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.1. 1992 c. 26. which provides

free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a

hoard of education or county college ith 25 ears of ser ice. Ihe State paid S I 26.3 liii Ii ion

toard hapter 126 benefits fur i 4,050 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 20 10.

‘%O’l’F 6: (fnniingent Liabilities

It s the opinion if the ehool hoird (tficiaIs that there is no litieation threatened or

i c.nd Liii u tij U tin ai II nomfl i t rh h I litriL
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NOTE 7: Equity Balance

At June 30,2011. the General Fund equity balance was as follows:

Recapitulations:
Restricted for:
Emergency Reserve $ 20 1 .005

Maintenance Reserve 150.150

Capital Reserve 496.899

Reserve for Tuition 225.000

Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures —

Excess Surplus 11.358

Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures
Tuition Reserve Budgeted Withdrawal 225.000

Committed to:
Other Purposes 43.862

Assigned to:
Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures — BOE 9,142

Unassigned _26,645

$ 1,589361

Reserved for encumbrances represents outstanding purchase orders which ill be rolled

into the 201 1-20 12 budget aiid expended therefrom.

Reserved excess surplus represents a calculation under N.i.S.A. 18A:7F-7 which

identities an amount of surplus under the statute which must be restricted for use in the next
succeeding budget.

2% Calculation of Excess Surplus
2010-1 I Total General Fund Expenditures Per the CAFR $ 10,832.668

Decreased by:
On-B.h ilf I PAF PLnslon 911(1 SoLlil Sc,ui t —— 046 320)

djutcd tO 11 Gtnual I und [ \pendI1mI1L S 10 286 48

o Of \diuted 2010 1 ( ftnLlal I ond [ xpndtui.s 202

Enter Greater of Above or $250,000 $ 250,000
Increased by Allowable Adjustment 92.769

Maximum Unassigned Fund Balance



NOTE 7: Equity Balance (Continued)

Section 2
Total General Fund — Fund Balance o 6—30—Il S 1 .589.361

Decreased b
Year-End Encumbrances (43.862)

Legally Restricted — Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures (225.000)

Legall. Restricted — Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year’s

Expenditures (II .358)

Other Restricted Fund Balances (1.073.354)

:\ssigned Fund Balance I. nreser ed - Designated ft-’r Subsequent Years

Expenditures (9.142)

lotal Unassigned Fund Balance $ 226,645

Restricted Fund Balance — Excess Surplus

Recapitulation of Excess Surplus as of June 30, 2011
Reserved Excess Surplus — Designated for Subsequent

Year’s Expenditures $11,358

Reserved Excess Surplus

iota! S 1 L358

Detail of Allowable Adjustments
Extraordinary Aid $ 91 ,652

Additional Nonpublic School Transportation Aid 1.117

lotal Adjustments $ 92,769

l)etail of Other Restricted Fund Balance
Capital Reserve $ 496,899

Maintenance Reserve 1 50.450

Emergenc’ Reser e 20 1 .005

Tuition Reserve 225.000

I otal Olhei Rcstnctd I und Balance $ I 073 3)4

NoTE 8: Risk ‘%Iananient

I he Dstrjei uc exposed to ariou risks at loss related to torts: theii at. uamaae to. and

destruction of assets: errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters.

!2ertia!d.iahilitL1nsuance — The i)istrict maintains commercial insurance coverage or

propert\ . I ab I it . student accident and surel\ bonds



NOTE 8: Risk Management (Continued)

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The F)istrict has elected to fund its

New Jerse\ nemplovrnent Compensation Insurance under the Benefit Reimbursement

\lethod”. I nder this plan. the District is required to reimburse the Ne\ Jersex [nemploment

[rust Fund fur beneflts paid to ts former emplo ees and charged to its account with the State.

The District is billed quarterly for amounts due the State. The following is a summary of District

contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the

ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current year:

District Employee Ending

Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance

2008-2009 1.971 7,326 28.598 226.996

2009-2010 0 8,125 54,234 180,887

2010-2011 0 8.179 99.764 89.302

NOTE 9: Intcrfund Receivables and Pavables

The following Interfunds were on the hooks as of June 30. 2011:

From To

General Fund $ 3 19.204

Special Revenue Fund 3 19.204

NOTE 10: Capital Reserve Account

A Capital Reserve account as established h the Borough of l3elmar Board of

Education b inclusion of $100 on September 1 . 2000 fur the accumulation of funds for use as

capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained

in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Fund placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the

districts approved Long Range Facilities Plan ( LRFP) and updated annualk in the Quality

Assurance Annual Report (QAAR). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department. a district

may deposit funds into the capital reserve at an time upon board resolution through the transfer

of undesignated. unreserved general fund balance or of excess undesignated, unreserved general

fund balance that is anticipated in the budget certified for taxes. Pursuant to NJ.A.C. 6:23A-

5 h d ) . the balance in the account cannot at an\ time exceed the local upport costs at

uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

Dining thc I isdl u Laded June 3() 20 thc l)istrict h id actu i intelest . ii nings t S
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NOTE 10: Capital Reserve Account (Continuedi

[he acti ity of the capital reser e for the Juk I. 2010 to June 30. 2011 fiscal \ ear asfol1os:

Beginning Balance Juk I. 2010 S 507.187Fransfer h Resolution
I 00,000Interest Earnings

712
607. 89Less: Appropriated in 2011-2012 Budget ±1L00O)

Balance June 30. 2011 $ 496899

“A hoard of education may. by resolution of the board: transfer undesignated generalftmd balance or excess undesignated general fund balance to the capital reser\ e account at antime during the budget year: transfer funds from the capital reserve account to the appropriateline item account for the funding of capital projects as contained in the districts long—rangefacilities plan: and transfer funds from the capital resere account to the debt service account forthe purpose of offsetting principal and interest pa ments for bonded projects hich are includedin the district’s long-range facilities plan.” (NJ.S.A. I 8A:7G-3 Ic)

Withdraxals ma not be used for current expense. Only funds in a capital resereaccount in existence prior to July 18. 2000 can be ithdra\n before recei ing approval of thedistrict’s LRFP and such x ithdravals must he for the original purpose deposited. (N.J.A.C.6:23A-5.1(fll).

“Any capital resere account in existence as of July 18. 2000 shall be subject to EFCFAand these regulations.” (N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5. 1(j)).

NOTE 11: Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The [bllowing methods and assumptions ‘ere used by the E3elmar I3oard of Education ineslimating its fair alue disclosures for financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equi alents: fhe carrying amounts reported in the combined balancesheet for cash and cash equi alents are the fair values of those assets.

NOTE 12: jalanceAiiatci

General Fund ( )f the SI I (Lncia1 Fund fund balance at June 30, 2011.54 3,862 is rcserc for e umbranes: $1 0.450 h reser\ ed for namletiance: 5201.005 isemergenc rcsc\c 5225 00() i tintion reser\ br 2t) I 020 Ii in acLoidane x itli Ni. \ C6 :23-’ I (f)( 8. S 496.890 i’ capital reser\c SI 1 358 is resersed excess surplus appropriatedand mcluded as anticipated rccnue fui the sear eiiding June 30. 2012: $Q, 142 is designated forsubsequent year’s expenditures h the Board of I ducation: $22.000 Is tuition reser e for 2fl0°201 (1 budcetcd I r thdresI IP 201 I 20 1 and (‘ 43 in is ned i June 39



NOTE 13: Economic Dependency

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from frderal and state

governments. A significant reduction in the level of support. if this were to occur. ma have an

effect on the District’s programs and activities.

NOTE 14: L)eficit Fund Balances

The District has a deficit fund balance of$1 8,344 in the Special Revenue Fund as of

June 30. 2011 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2003. c. 97

pro ides that in the e\ent a state school aid payment is not made until the ftilow ing school

budget year. districts must record the last state aid payment as revenue, for budget purposes only.

in the current school ear budget. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to

recognize this revenue in the current budget sear. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB

Statement 33 requires that recognition (revenue. expenditure. asset. liability) should be in

sy mmetrv. i.e.. if one government recognizes an asset. the other government recognizes a

liability. Since the State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal year. the

school district can not recognize the last state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements

until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the last

state aid payment, the Special Revenue Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the

district is facing financial difficulties.

Pursuant to A,JS.A. I 8A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund

balance that is reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the

following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in

need or corrective action. The District deficit in the GAAP fund statements of $1 8,344 is equal

to the last state aid payment.

NOTE 15: Si2nilicant Accountintt Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105, Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles. hich establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sole source of

authoritative generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC

105. the District has updated references to GAAP in its financial statements issued tbr the period

ended June 30, 2011. The adoption of FASB ASC 105 did not impact the District’s financial

position or resu Its of operations.

In May 2009. the FASB updated ASC 855. Subsequent Events, which is effective for

reporting periods ending after June 15. 2009 .ASC $55 establishes general standards of

accounting lbr and disclosure of cx ents that occur afler the balance sheet date, hut before the

financial statements are issued, or are available to be issued. The District adopted the amended

sections of .\SC 855 and it did not hax c an impact on the District’s financial statements. The

District evaluated all eents or transactions that occurred after June 30. 2011 through Nox ember

10.2011.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



61.

BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit C-3

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

NOTE TO RSI

JUNE 30, 2011

Special
General Revenue

Fund Fund

Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues’ from the budgetary

comparison schedules $ 10,801,359 1,330,105

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related (50.742)

revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the

current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 121 ,755 10,865

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not

recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (63,533) (18,344)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental

funds. $ 10,859,581 1,271,884

Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ‘total outflows” from the

budgetary comparison schedule $ 10,832,668 1.330,105

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not

received are reported in the year the order is placed for

budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received

for financial reporting purposes. (50,742)

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues.

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental

funds. S 10.832.668 1,279.363



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES — D

N/A



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - E
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65.BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Exhibit E-2

PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDiTURES

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

Total Instruction

Budgeted

$ 128,198
29.651

157,849

Actual

128,198
29,651

157,849

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Support Services:
Contracted Services
Other Objects
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Total Support Services

1,002
1,873

22,716
25,591

1,002
1,873

22,716
25,591

Calculation of Bud2et and Carryover
Total 2010-2011 Budget Preschool Education Aid
Less: Budgeted 2010-2011 Preschool Education Aid

Available and Unbudgeted at June 30, 2011 Preschool Education Aid

2009-2010 Carryover Budgeted in 20 10-201 1 Preschool Education Aid

Total Expenditures $ 183,440 183,440

$ 183,440
183.440

$

$



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - F

N/A



PROPRIETARY FUNDS - G

N/A
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BELMAR SChOOL DISTRICT
67.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
Exhibit 11-2

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Unemployment
Compensation

Insurance Totals
Scholarships Trust Fund 2011

Additions:
Local Sources:
Contributions $ - 7,929 7,929

Interest on Investments 250 250

Total Additions 8,179 8,179

Deductions:
Unemployment Claims 99,764 99,764

Total Deductions 99,764 99,764

Change in Net Assets - (91,585) (91,585)

Net Assets, July 1 800 180,887 181,687

Net Assets, June 30 S 800 89.302 90,102



BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT
68.

STUDENT ACTWITY AGENCY FUND
Exhibit 11-3

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Cash Cash Balance

June 30, 2010 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2011

Elementary School:

Belmar Elementary $ 18,082 12,992 10,324 20,750

Referee Account 8,813 13 4,825 4,001

Total All Schools $ 26,895 13,005 15,149 24,751



BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT
69.

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
Exhibit H-4

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance

June 30, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 150 2,155,043 2,154,922 271

Total Assets $ 150 2,155,043 2,154,922 271

Liabilities:
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings S - 2,154,772 2,154,772 -

Accounts Payable 150 271 150 271

Total Liabilities $ 150 2,155,043 2,154,922 271
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT4NTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. (1959-1992> 7e;088
2807 Huney Pond Road ‘Suite 100

ROBERT A. HULSART, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A.
. RO. Box 1409

ROBERT A. HULSAR1 JR,C.P.A., RS.A. e-mail: Wail. New Jersey 07719-1409

rah@monmouth.com (732i 6814990
RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR., C.RA.. P.S.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCiAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERT\MENTA UDITING ST4NDARDS

K-I

Honorable President and \lembers
of the Board of Education

Belmar School District

Count’ ot Monmouth
Beimar. :e\ Jerse

We ha e audited the ceneral—purpose financial statements otthe Board of Education of the
Belmar School District, in the County of Monmouth. State ot New Jersey. as of and for the liscal ear
ended June 30. 201 I. and have issued our report thereon dated November 10. 2011 - We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generaIl accepted in the United States of America the
standards applicable to Onancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States: and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance, Department of Education. State of New Jersey.

naICroIOveFinanciaIReortitiu

In planning and performintt ou.r audit. we considered the. Belmar Board of Educations internal
control ove.r flnancial reportiuc as a basis for de.sigui u our au.diting proe.edures [or the purpose. of
e\pressinc our opuion on the linanc ial statements. nut not br the purpo.se ot ext.’irs sine an opinion on

-c-ttectiveness of th Beimar Board of F lvatii illi oer tinaitcial reportinu.

.\ceora mclv. we ha ll c\nre an Opinion 00 the c-i I CCI. R eness ot tile Kelmar Board o 1 Edueailon
internal c:On-tra over iiaieiA

h,ioaiiu! es ists hen the-dcsion or operation nt a control does not ni low
manacement or e. nplo\ ces. to the normal course oi neriorminc th.er as cued tnnctionN_ to prevent or

one. correct misstalement 0 0. tinic!.r O05. r\ r7:,!.J wJtolerc 0 eeticencr. ar comhiniil on
of in internal sucti that there is a reast ilatlie possihii.it\ that a material air :tatetsien 1.

of the DistriL.ts l:naocai statements will, not hepr or detected and corrected on a timel basis.



95.

Our consideration of internal control o er financial reporting was for the limited purpose

described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessaril identif\ all deficiencies in

internal control that might he significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, We did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control oer financial reporting that we consider to he material weaknesses, as

defined ahoe.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Belmar Board of Education’s

general—purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests ot its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations. contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance

with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of general—purpose financial

statement amounts. I-low e er, pros iding an opinion on compliance with those pros isions was not an

objectie of our audit and. accordingl\ . we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests

disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to he reported under

6ovei’nnwni Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Di ision of Finance.

Department of Education. State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solel for the information and use of’the audit committee, management.

the Belmar Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and

federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to he and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Ilulsart
Licensed Public School Accountant

No. 322
Robert i\. Hulsart and Company

No ember 10, 2011
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNT4NTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.RA., R.M.A., P.S.A. (19591992)
(732)280-8888 2807 Hurley Pond Road Suite 100ROBERT A. HULSART, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.SA.

P.O. Box 1409ROBERT A. HULSART JR.,C.P.A., RS.A.
e-mail Wail. New Jersey 07719-1409

rah@monmouth.com

(732) 681’4990RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR., C.P.A., RS.A.

1AJ0R PROGRAM AM) ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 AND

NE\\ JERSEY 0MB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and Members
of the I3oard of Education

Belmar School District

(.ountv 01 Monmouth
Beimar, New Jersey

Corn p ha iice

\Ve have audited the compliance of tue Board ol’ Education ot the Belmar School District, in the
Counts of Monmouth. State of New ic rsev. x ith the types of compliance requirements described in the
I S Ufli L of l1aiiat nit in and Budt i ) fIbi ( U u/al 1 i h ( (mip/lanc c Supp/r iiir ni and the \
Jersey State .4 idGiant (‘onip/lance Supplement that are applicable to each of its rnaor fi_’derai and state
programs bar tile Oscal ear ended June 30. 2011 . Beimar Board of Education’s major tederai and state
programs are identified in tile summary ofauditors results section of the accompanying schedule of
hndings and uuestioned costs, Compliance with the requirements of laws. regulations. contracts and
grams applicable to cacti ot its maior lederal and state programs IS tile responsibi it\ of tile Belmar Board
of Educations management. Our responsibi itv is to express an opinion on the Belmar Board of
Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance \\ ith auditinu standards generall\ accepted
in the United States of ;\merica tile standards applicable to linancial audits contained in Goi’ernment
.lttd/!mi,’ .Staisd.nnF. issued h’ the Comptroller General of the n lied State,. the audit rcuiremei1ls JN

1 1
J 1 L I d ,. , ‘,,‘ \lB eiI

133 ludi’s )j Val s I ocU/ (ioi nba fl/S ‘md \on PiOhIl UT 4mflhlCatb us md Ns Jeiws 0M13
ir hit 4 IL S j a1 d I, I f I I Is Si ,s i , I

NtanJw’dN. 0MB C re-nlsr A- 33 and \essierse\ t.t\i’Ef.L Clrethai .14-04, rcrjuuc thai sse plan an
c.rlorm the audit to obmin reasonable. assuranc e about whetht.r noncompliance with the ts’pe.s of

corn tilance requrernenrs re barred to above that could have a direct and materia eficcton a major federal
and Ntate proemam accni rest .-\naudn nciudcs examinin . on a test basis. ‘c 1oetce about the Be
Bocird. of Education’s compliance with those. requirements and performing such other procedures as we
consideresi necessary in the circumstanc.es. We he! eve tha.t our audit provdes a reasonable basic our
ipini’ . Our andii, no). nrovicie a ices) rteicrtninatioii on the f icr Board of

corn))) ia.ncc. 55 nfl t.nose rcqu scmncnts.

oOiLioti. sic :tm- .mi f..di.ictinti. the BeJina )Sch.oi i)isirici. in the
tviOuT,mou)h. siltc Li 5’\• Jcrsc’s., conipliec. in all material respects, with the res1nirements re.barred to
ho\ c. ti c pl ibis. mo s. isO d tts ni e’ ‘Is. ti a,id deL pt vo t s to ths. xc ‘t ndc I in w 3)
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The manaement of the Board of Education of the Belmar School District is responsible tbr

establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws.

regulations, contracts and grants applicable to flderaI and state programs. In planning and performing

our audit, we considered the Belmar Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with

requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program in order to

determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance. hut not fbr

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecti eness of internal control over compliance.

Accordingl. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Belmar Board of Education’s
internal control over compliance.

A cle/iciencl in internal control Ot’c’l’ Lollipliance exists when the design or operation of a control

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfiwming their

assigned functions. to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of

a fderal program w ill not he pre ented. or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control o er compliance was for the limited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and would not necessaril identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. \ e did not identify an deficiencies in

internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management.
the Belmar Board of Education, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other federal and
state awarding agencies and pass—through entities and is not intended to he and should not be used b’
an one other than these specified parties.

Robert A. l-lulsart
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322
Robert A. I lulsart and Company

No\ ember 10. 2011
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100.
BOARD OF EDUCATION

K-5
BELMAR SCHOOl. DISTRICT

fOTES TO SCHE1)ULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1: General

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance present the activity of all federal and state
financial assistance programs of the Board of Education, Belmar School District. The Board of
Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board’s general-purpose financial statements. All federal
financial assistance receied directly from federal agencies, as ell as federal financial assistance passed
through other government agencies is included on the schedule ol federal financial assistance.

OTE 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of
accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. Programs recorded in the lod service fund include the National School
Lunch Program. the School Breakfast Program. the U.S.D.A Commodities Program and the Special Milk
Program. These bases of accounting are described in the Note 1(C) to the Board’s general-purpose
financial statements.

NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

The general—purpose financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a
GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) arc presented for the general fund
and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is
permitted by law or grant agreement to he recognized in the audit ear, whereas for GAAP reporting.
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent \ear or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with
the exception ol the revenue recogmtion of the last state aid pa\ mciii in the current budget year. \\hich is
mandated pursuant to P.L. 2003. c.97.(A3521 ). For (IAAP purposes. that payment is not recognized
until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in
the subsequent year, The special re cnue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting hudgetar basis hicli recoenizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, v hereas the (AAP basis does not,
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NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)

Special
Revenue Food

General Fund Fund Service Total

State Assistance
:\ctual Amounts (Budgetary)
Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance S L082.906 637.938 3.328 1,724,172

Difference Budget to GAAP”
Grant Accounting Budgetan.

Basis Differs from (IAAP
in that Encumbrances are
Recogniied as Expenditures
and the Related Reenue
is Recognized

On Behalf Payments
Recognized for GAAP
Statements but Nol
Included in the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance 272,062 272.062

The Last State Aid Pa ment
Is Recognized as Re enue
for Budgetary Purposes.
and Differs from GAAP
Which does not Recognize
This Recnue Until the
Subsequent Year When the
State Recognizes the Related
Expense (GASB 33) 58,222 j7.47Q) 50.743

lotal State Revenue as Reported
on the Statement of Re enues.
Lxpenditure’ and C hanges in
I und B il mnLc I 413 190 630 4N9 328 2 (346 9
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NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)

Special
Revenue Food

General Fund Fund Service Total

Federal Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal
Awards $ 12.901 692.167 147.747 852.815

Difference Budget to GAAP
Grant Accounting Budgetary
Basis Differs from GAAP in that
Encumbrances are Recognized as
Expenditures. and the Related
Revenue is Recognized

Total Federal Revenue as
Reported on the Statement
of Revenue. Expenditures.
and Changes in Fund
Balances $ 12,901 692,17 142347 852,815

NOTE 4: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related
federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year
value received and current ear distributions respectively. [he amount reported as iPAF Pension
Contributions represents the amount paid by the state of behalf of the District for the ear ended .lune 30.
2011 1 PAF Social Securit Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employers share of social security contributions for IPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 6: Adjustments

[he adusrments on Schedule :\ are due lo prior ear encumbrance adjustments.



Financial Statement Section

T pe of auditors report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Reportable conditions(s) identified that are

not considered to be material eaLnesses?

Noncompliance material to general purpose financial

statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Reportable condition(s) identified that are

not considered to he material eaknesses?

Type of auditors report issued on compliance for major programs:

An audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with section .5 1 0(a) of Circular A—I 33?

Identification of major programs:

CF1)A Number(s)

Special_Education C luster:

$4027

ct 1’”

84 391

______________

$4392

______

BELMAR SCHOOL I)ISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEI) JUNE 30, 2011

Part I — Suinmtirj of Auditor c Results

K-6

Uualified

Yes x No

Yes x None Reported

Yes x No

Yes x No

Yes x None Reported

Unqualified

Yes x No

Name of FederaJ Program or Cluster

IDEA Basic

________

lI)EA Preschool

ARRA_IDEA Basic

_______

ARRA IDEA Preschool

— L

Auditee qualified as 1owrisk auditee?



BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDiNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL \‘EAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part I - Sununar of.4 uditor’s Results ((ontiuued,)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low —risk auditee?

Type of auditors report issued on compliance for major protrams:

Internal Control o er major programs:

I ) Material Weakness(es) identified?

(2) Reportable condition(s) identified that are

not considered to material weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to he reported

in accordance with N.J. OMB’s Circular 04-04?

ldent i lication ot maj or program s:

GMIS Number(s)

1-495-034-5120-011

11-495-034-5095-002

x Yes No

N/A

K-6

$300,()00.00

Yes x No

Yes x None Reported

Yes x No

Name of State Program

Special Education Aid

Reimbursed Social Securit
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BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRiCT

SCHEDULE OF FINDiNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
K-6

FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 2 — Financial Statement Findings

This section identities the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance

related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with

paragraphs 5.] 8 through 5 .2() of Gowrn,iic,it /1lI(h/ing SIUnL/urdv.

Finding: None

Citeriaorpecific iquirement: N/A

Condition: N/A

uesdoned Costs: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Cause: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

ManaementsReonse: N/A



BELMAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ANI) QUESTIONED COSTS
K-6

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2011

Part 3 — Federal A wards and Slate Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned costs

This section identifies audit findings required to he reported h section .510(a) of Circular A—I 33 and NJOlB

Circular Letter 04-04.

FEDERAL AWARDS

fjdipg: NONE

Information on the Federal Proeram: N A

Qritenaorspççiflc requirement: N A

Condition: N/A

QçstionedCpsts: N/A

Context: N/A

Effect: N/A

Cause: N/A

Recommendation: N’A

Manaeementsreonse: N/A

STATE AWARDS

Findjg: NONE

lnlhrmation on the State Protrarn: N/A

CriteruiorspççJflcreçgjcient: N A

Condition: \j\

Questioned Cosis: \ A

Context: N./A

Etcct: N A



BELMAR SChOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTiONED COSTS
K-6

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENI)ED JUNE 30, 2011

Part 3 — Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned costs (Continued,)

STATE AWARDS (Continued)

Cause: N/A

Recommendation: N/A

Manaernjropse: N/A



Prior Audit Findings:

Non

BELIAR SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDiNGS
K-7

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011


